
City Council 
Rick Thomas, Mayor 

David Vodden, Vice Mayor 
Gary Hansen, Council Member 
Jeff Williams, Council Member 

Casey Hofhenke, Council Member 

City Manager 
Marti Brown 

City Clerk 
Vacant 

Willows City Council 
Regular Meeting 
May 23, 2023 
Willows City Hall 
6:00 PM – Regular Session 

201 North Lassen Street 
Willows, CA 95988 

(530) 934-7041
Agenda

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL

4. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA

5. PRESENTATION
a. Proclamation for Memorial Day, May 29, 2023
b. Proclamation for National Public Works Week, May 21 – 27, 2023
c. Glenn County CARE Court

Presenter: Joe Hallett, LCSW, Glenn County Behavioral Health Director,
HHSA Deputy Director, County of Glenn

6. PUBLIC HEARING
a. Weed Abatement Declarations

Recommendation: Upon opening the Public Hearing, listen to protest from property owners 
concerning declared nuisances and direct staff accordingly.
Contact:  Nate Monck, Willows Fire Chief,  nmonck@cityofwillows.org

7. PUBLIC COMMENT & CONSENT CALENDAR FORUM
All matters on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and are approved by one motion and vote, 
unless Councilmembers or the City Manager first requests that a matter be removed for separate 
discussion and action. Individuals wishing to address the City Council concerning Consent Calendar 
items or regarding matters that are not already on the agenda are invited to make oral comments of 
up to three minutes at this time. Please address your comments to the Mayor and Councilmembers, 
and not to staff and/or the audience. By State law, the Council is not permitted to undertake any 
action or discussion on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. If you have any documentation 
that you would like distributed to the City Council, please mail it to the City Clerk at 201 North Lassen 
Street, Willows, CA 95988 or email it to: cityclerk@cityofwillows.org.

1

mailto:nmonck@cityofwillows.org
mailto:cityclerk@cityofwillows.org


WILLOWS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 2 

a. Register Approval
Recommended Action: Approve general checking, payroll, and direct deposit check registers.
Contact: Marti Brown, City Manager, mbrown@cityofwillows.org

b. Minutes Approval
Recommended Action: Approve minutes of the May 9, 2023, City Council meeting.
Contact: Marti Brown, City Manager, mbrown@cityofwillows.org

c. Mosquito and Vector Control District Board of Trustees – Biennial Appointment
Recommended Action: Re-appoint Vince Holvik as the City’s representative to the Glenn County
Mosquito and Vector Control District for a two-year term to run from July 1, 2023, through June
30, 2025.
Contact: Marti Brown, City Manager, mbrown@cityofwillows.org

d. County of Glenn Draft Water Well Drilling and Standards Ordinance
Recommended Action: To review and provide any comments on the Draft Water Well Drilling
and Standards Ordinance.
Contact:  Marti Brown, City Manager, mbrown@cityofwillows.org

e. Tehama Street Bridge Project – Accept Improvements
Recommended Action:  Adopt resolution accepting the improvements associated with the
Tehama Street Bridge Project, authorize the filing of the Notice of Completion and release of
surety, and approve a budget adjustment for the overall project.
Contact:  Pat Piatt, Community Development & Services Director, ppiatt@cityofwillows.org

f. Solid Waste Management Parcel Fee
Recommended Action:  Adopt a resolution (Attachment 1) extending service charges imposed
on improved real property within the incorporated area of the City of Willows for the use of
and/or ability to use the Glenn County Solid Waste System during fiscal year 2023-24.

Contact: Pat Piatt, Community Development & Services Director, ppiatt@cityofwillows.org
 Marti Brown, City Manager, mbrown@cityofwillows.org 

8. DISCUSSION & ACTION CALENDAR
All matters in this section of the Agenda are discussed and will be acted on individually. Individuals
wishing to address the City Council concerning any of these items are invited to make oral comments
of up to three minutes at this time. Please address your comments to the Mayor and Councilmembers,
and not to staff and/or the audience. When the Mayor calls for public comment, please raise your
hand to be acknowledged. While not required, the City requests that you please state your name
clearly for the audio recording. By State law, the Council is not permitted to undertake any action or
discussion on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. If you have any documentation that you
would like distributed to the City Council, please mail it to the City Clerk at 201 North Lassen Street,

2

mailto:mbrown@cityofwillows.org
mailto:mbrown@cityofwillows.org
mailto:mbrown@cityofwillows.org
mailto:mbrown@cityofwillows.org
mailto:ppiatt@cityofwillows.org
mailto:ppiatt@cityofwillows.org
mailto:mbrown@cityofwillows.org


WILLOWS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 3 

Willows, CA 95988 or email it to: cityclerk@cityofwillows.org.  

a. Weed Abatement Contract Award
Recommended Action:  Award Weed Abatement Contract to Robert Burt Construction.
Contact:  Nate Monck, Fire Chief, nmonck@cityofwillows.org

b. Green and Jefferson Streets Urgent Repair Project - Budget Adjustment
Recommended Action: Authorize a budget adjustment of $39,653 to the contract with All-
American Construction, Inc. for the Green and Jefferson Streets Urgent Repair Project, bringing
the total not to exceed amount to $104,653, which will be funded with a combination of Gas
Tax, SB1 and/or RSTP Funds.
Contact: Pat Piatt, Community Development & Services Director, ppiatt@cityofwillows.org

c. SB 1 Transportation Funds – Project List for FY23-24
Recommended Action: Approve the attached resolution and following actions: Review the
recommended street projects to be funded with SB-1 monies; Listen to public comments and
direct staff to make any changes, if necessary; Adopt the attached resolution; Direct staff to
proceed with submitting the FY 2023-24 Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA)
project list to the State for approval; and Authorize the necessary changes to the budget
reflecting the anticipated revenues from SB-1 as mentioned herein and the expenditures for
improvements to the streets included in the 2024 Pavement Rehabilitation Project as
mentioned herein.
Contact:  Pat Piatt, Community Development & Services Director, ppiatt@cityofwillows.org

d. Purchase Case Backhoe
Recommended Action:  Approve the attached resolution (Attachment 1) authorizing the
purchase of a new backhoe from Sonsray Machinery in accordance with the attached quote
(Attachment 2) for a total amount of $149,993.
Contact:  Pat Piatt, Community Development & Services Director, ppiatt@cityofwillows.org

9. COMMENTS & REPORTS
a. City Council Correspondence
b. City Council Comments & Reports

3

mailto:cityclerk@cityofwillows.org
mailto:nmonck@cityofwillows.org
mailto:ppiatt@cityofwillows.org
mailto:ppiatt@cityofwillows.org
mailto:ppiatt@cityofwillows.org


WILLOWS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 4 

10. ADJOURNMENT

This agenda was posted on May 19, 2023. 

______________________________ 
Marti Brown, City Manager 

A complete agenda packet, including staff reports and back-up information, is available for public inspection during normal work hours at City Hall 
or the Willows Public Library at 201 North Lassen Street in Willows or on the City’s website at www.cityofwillows.org. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Willows will make available to members of the public any special assistance 
necessary to participate in this meeting.  If requested, the agenda shall be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a 

disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132). The public should contact the City Clerk’s 
office at 934-7041 to make such a request.  Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to 

ensure accessibility to this meeting. 

The City of Willows is an Equal Opportunity Provider.  

4

http://www.cityofwillows.org/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
PRESENTATIONS 

5



WHEREAS, Memorial Day each year serves as a solemn reminder of the scourge of war and its 

bitter aftermath of sorrow; and 

WHEREAS, this day has traditionally been devoted to paying homage to loved ones who lie in 

hallowed graves throughout the land, having sacrificed their lives that war might end; and 

WHEREAS, in tribute to these silent dedd it is fitting that we lift up our voices toghter in supplication 

to Almighty God for wisdom in our search for enduring peace; and 

WHEREAS, the Congress, in a joint resolution approved May 11, 1950, provided that Memorial Day 

should be set aside as a day of prayer for permanent peace; and 

WHEREAS, today and every day, let us remember the service men and woman we have lost and let 

us honor them by rededicating ourselves to strengthening our Nation's promise. With love, grace, 

and reflection, let us honor our fallen fellow Americans, known and unknown, who sacrificed their 

freedom to ensure our own. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Richard Thomas, Mayor of the City of Willows, do hereby proclaim Memorial 

Day, May 29, 2023, as day of City-wide prayer for permanent peace. 

In commemoration of this event, I urge all citizens to join together in their homes, places of work 

and places of worship to pray for the permanent peace and to continue to pray for our city, our 

state and our nation. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed the 

official seal of the City of Willows, Glenn County, California, this 23rd day of May, 2023. 

Richard Thomas, Mayor 
FO 

Agenda Item #5a.

6



Glenn County 
CARE Court
COMMUNITY ASSISTANCE, RECOVERY, AND EMPOWERMENT
(C.A.R.E.) COURT

A g e n d a  # 5 b

7



CARE Court Overview
 A new framework designed to link individuals with specific mental health 

disorders to county behavioral health to receive the support and care they need.
• Designed as a diversion process to prevent conservatorship or incarceration.

 Connects a person to a court-ordered Care Plan for up to 24 months.
• Clinically prescribed, individualized treatment plan, with supportive services and dedicated 

team.

2
8



Criteria and Eligibility
 18 years of age or older

 Not clinically stable in ongoing voluntary treatment

 Currently experiencing a severe mental illness, with a diagnosis of 
schizophrenia spectrum or other psychotic disorders

 And at least one of the following is true:
• The person is unlikely to survive safely in the community without supervision 

and the person’s condition is substantially deteriorating;  OR
• The person needs services in order to prevent a relapse or deterioration that 

would result in grave disability, or serious harm to self or others.

3
9



What are Schizophrenia Spectrum and 
Other Psychotic Disorders?
*NOTE: Diagnoses must be determined by a Licensed Practitioner of the Healing Arts with a              
scope of practice that includes assessment and diagnosis of behavioral health disorders. Other 
concerns must be ruled out before a mental health diagnosis is made

From the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders 5th Edition (DSM-5)
May include any of the following symptoms causing clinically significant distress:
 Delusions
 Hallucinations
 Disorganized Thinking (Speech)
 Grossly Disorganized or Abnormal Motor Behavior
 Including Catatonic behavior

 Negative Symptoms
 Diminished emotional expression
 Decrease in self-initiated purposeful activities
 Diminished speech
 Lack of interest in social activities

4
10



How is someone referred to CARE Court?
A petition may be submitted by the following individuals:
 Family member 
 Adult Roommate
 First responder
 Provider/clinician 
 Public guardian
 Adult protective services 
 County behavioral health

 Indian Health services
 Tribal courts, 
 Hospital Director
 Court
 Respondent (self-referral)

 The petition must contain facts supporting how the respondent meets criteria for CARE Court, AND
 Either of the following:

 Affidavit of eligibility by a licensed behavioral health professional or;
 Written evidence that the respondent was detained for at least 2 involuntary inpatient treatment 

episodes,  1 of which was in the past 60 days.

5
11



Caution: 
petitions must be valid

6

If a person or organization files 
multiple petitions found to be 
without merit or intended to 
harass or annoy, the court may 
consider that party a “vexatious 
litigant” under California law. 

12



How To Initiate the 
Care Court Process

First, the petitioner fills out the CARE 
court petition form, which includes:

Either of the following:

An affidavit of eligibility by a licensed 
behavioral health professional

OR

Evidence that the respondent has been 
detained for at least two involuntary 
inpatient treatment episodes, with one in 
the last 60 days.

Second, the court reviews the petition to 
verify the petitioner provided enough 
evidence that the responded is, or may be, 
eligible.

Third, if there is sufficient evidence, then 
the case is set for an initial appearance 
within 14 days and directs the County 
Behavioral Health Agency to evaluate and 
attempt to engage the respondent into 
voluntary services.

7
13



Voluntary Services Agreement Process

8
14



Court-Ordered Services Process

9

PETITION
Petitioner files the petition 
against the respondent with the 
court

INITIAL APPEARANCE
Respondent and their lawyer 
appear in court. A supporter may 
be appointed.

ELIGIBILITY HEARING
Court determines whether the 
respondent qualifies for CARE 
court

NO AGREEMENT
Clinical evaluation is ordered if 
one has not already been done in 
the last 30 days

CLINICAL EVALUATION & HEARING
The court reviews the evaluation 
that determines the respondent’s 
eligibility

CARE PLAN  APPROVAL
The court will approve or modify 
the CARE plan and then set a 
progress hearing

PROGRESS HEARING
Review progress, issues with CARE 
plan, and recommendations to 
solve any issues or concerns 

ONE-YEAR STATUS HEARING
Final look at progress made, 
issues with CARE plan, 
recommendations 

GRADUATION OR EXTENSION
Respondent will graduate from CARE 
court, voluntarily remain, or involuntarily 
remain

15



The CARE Agreement/CARE Plan
Both the CARE Agreement and CARE Plan 
contain the same elements, and may include 
the following services as needed:

 Behavioral Health Services 

 Medications

 Housing resources

 Social Services

 Other general services

10
16



Development of the Care Plan
The CARE plan is jointly developed by County 
Behavioral Health, with the respondent, their 
counsel and supporter within 14 days of establishing 
eligibility.

The county, the parties, or both, may present a 
proposed CARE Plan to the court.

Elements of the CARE plan will be approved by the 
Judge and can be adopted via court order.

11
17



CARE Plan: 
Medication Orders

Stabilization medications: antipsychotic 
medications to reduce symptoms of 
hallucinations, delusions, and disorganized 
thinking. 

Can be court ordered;

Cannot be forcibly administered; AND,

The respondent cannot be penalized for failure 
to comply with medication order.

12
18



13

Respondent’s Rights
Respondent’s Rights
• Receive notice of the hearing
• Receive a copy of the court-ordered evaluation
• Be represented by an attorney
• Have a supporter present
• Be present at the hearings or waive the right to be present
• Present evidence at a hearing (of ineligibility, good progress, 

etc.)
• Call witnesses at a hearing to testify (of ineligibility, good 

progress, etc.)
• Cross-examine petitioner’s witnesses at a hearing
• Appeal the court’s decisions, and be told of this right

19



Voluntary Supporter 
• Respondents may choose a voluntary “supporter” to aid them 

throughout the CARE Court process.  The supporter will:
 Help the respondent understand, consider, and communicate informed 

and self-directed choices and decisions
 Help prevent the need for more restrictive alternatives, such as 

conservatorship

• The supporter may be present at all hearings, as requested by the 
respondent.

• Training is available for voluntary supporters, to help understand the 
importance of their role in CARE Court.

14
20



Frequently Asked Questions
Can anyone be referred to CARE Court?

No. CARE Court has specific criteria, and petitions must come from an allowable source with all required elements.

How can I refer someone to CARE Court?  

A person can only enter the program through the petition process.

Is CARE Court involuntary or forced treatment?

No. There are steps throughout the process to engage respondents voluntarily in treatment.  If the respondent does 
not participate in CARE, they may be subject to additional court hearings, but ultimately CARE is a voluntary Civil Court 
Process.

Does CARE Court add additional services not previously offered? 

No. CARE Court utilizes existing services already offered by counties but offers a different framework to deliver those 
services.

Is CARE Court only for persons experiencing homelessness?

No. While homelessness may be one of the concerns for the respondent, it is not a requirement for participation in the 
program. CARE Court is designed for persons with specific mental health diagnoses, who are at risk for remaining safely 
in the community.

15
21



Contacts
Joe Hallett, LCSW

Glenn County Behavioral Health Director
HHSA Deputy Director

530-934-6582 
jhallett@countyofglenn.net

Kristin Doyle , LCSW
Program Manager, Adult Mental Health Services

Glenn County Behavioral Health
530-865-6459

KDoyle@countyofglenn.net

16
22

mailto:jhallett@countyofglenn.net
mailto:KDoyle@countyofglenn.net


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

23



Agenda Item #6a. 

 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 
Date:   May 23, 2022 

To:   Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers 

From:   Nathan Monck, Fire Chief 
  Marti Brown, City Manager 

Subject:  Weed Abatement Declarations 
 

Recommendation:  

Upon opening the Public Hearing, listen to protest from property owners concerning declared 
nuisances and direct staff accordingly.  

Rationale for Recommendation:   

This process was outlined and approved by the City Council of the City of Willows. The public 
hearing affords members of the public to contest declared weed abatement nuisances that 
were adopted at the April 25, 2023, City Council meeting.  

Background:  

On April 25, 2023, the City Council adopted a resolution declaring rubbish, refuse, and weeds to 
be a public nuisance. The Willow’s Fire Department surveyed areas of the City with reported 
and/or observed nuisances. Property owners were notified that they must remove all 
nuisances, or the City would perform the task for them and bill the property owner accordingly. 
This public hearing is the opportunity for property owners to contest the declaration of any and 
all nuisances. This public hearing was published in the local newspaper of general circulation. 

Discussion & Analysis:  

In early 2023, there was significant rainfall leading to greater-than-normal weed growth. As a 
result, many more notices were issued in 2023 than in prior years due to weather conditions. It 
is anticipated that many of the properties on the list have already been abated based on 
received self-abatement declarations. 

  

24



Agenda Item #6a. 

Fiscal Impact:  

There is no fiscal impact.  

Attachment:  

 Attachment 1: Resolution XX-2023 

 

25



Attachment 1 

 

 

City of Willows  
Resolution xx-2023 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS CONFIRMING COSTS OF  
ABATEMENTS AMENDED AND DECLARING THEM A SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 

 

WHEREAS, the parcels listed and adopted by resolution were declared a nuisance and ordered 
to abate as of the Council meeting of April 25, 2023; and  
 

WHEREAS, the required notices as set forth in Section 39500 through 39588 of the Government 
Code have been sent as required by law; and  
 

WHEREAS, the owners of said parcels have an opportunity to protest at public hearing.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Willows held the required public 
protest hearing on May 23, 2023, and hereby confirms the findings of the April 25th 2023 declarations 
set forth in Resolution 19-2023. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Willows this 23rd day of May 2023, by the 
following vote: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 
APPROVED:      ATTESTED: 
 
 
____________________________   _____________________________ 
Richard Thomas, Mayor     Tara Rustenhoven, Deputy City Clerk 
    
 

 

 

26



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT & 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

FORUM 
 

27



Agenda Item #7a.

28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



Agenda Item #7b. 
 

City Council  
Rick Thomas, Mayor 

David Vodden, Vice Mayor 
Gary Hansen, Council Member 
Jeff Williams, Council Member 

Casey Hofhenke, Council Member 
 

City Manager  
Marti Brown 

 
City Clerk 

Vacant 
 

Willows City Council 
Meeting  
Draft Action Minutes 
May 9, 2023 
  
 
 

     

201 North Lassen Street 
Willows, CA 95988 

(530) 934-7041 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER – 6:00 PM 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. ROLL CALL 
Councilmembers Present: Councilmembers Hansen, Hofhenke and Williams, Vice Mayor Vodden and 
Mayor Thomas   

  
4. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA - None 

  
5. PRESENTATIONS 

a. Mayor Thomas presented a proclamation for National Poppy Day to representatives of the 
American Legion Auxiliary of the City of Willows. 

b. Received presentation provided by Jody Samons, consultant for EB3 Development, regarding 
the Economic Development Project funded by USDA. 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT & CONSENT CALENDAR FORUM 
No public comment was received.   
 

a. Register Approval 
Action: Approved general checking, payroll, and direct deposit check registers.  
 

b. Minutes Approval 
Action: Approved minutes of the April 25, 2023, City Council meeting and May 2, 2023, Special 
City Council Meeting.  

 
c. Merger and Name Change of Health Insurance Company, Fire Districts Association of  

California, Employee Benefit Authority (FDAC EBA) 
Action:  Approved continuing to participate in the new Joint Self-Insurance and Risk 
Management Programs provided by Fire Risk Management Services (FRMS). 
 
 
 

42



  
      2 

 

Moved/Seconded: Councilmembers Hansen and Williams    
Yes: Councilmembers Hansen, Williams, Ho�enke, Vice Mayor Vodden and Mayor Thomas 

 
7. DISCUSSION & ACTION CALENDAR 

 
a. Construc�on of the Cal Water Main Connec�on 

Ac�on: Authorized the City Manager, or her designee, to sign the Cal Water Agreement 
extending a 12-inch water main and acquisi�on of the City’s exis�ng water system in the 
southern por�on of the City from Rumiano Cheese Company to Road 57 (the City’s two water 
wells).  
 
Moved/Seconded: Councilmembers Hansen and Vice Mayor Vodden    
Yes: Councilmembers Hansen, Williams, Vice Mayor Vodden and Mayor Thomas 
No:  Councilmember Hofhenke 
 
Public Comment:  Doug Ross; Clifford Wade 
 

b. Landscape & Lighting Assessment District – Preliminary Engineer’s Annual Report FY 2023-24 
Action: Received the Preliminary Annual Engineer’s Report as prepared by Coastland Civil 
Engineering; adopt the Resolution of Intention to levy and collect assessments; and set the time 
and date of the required public protest hearing for the City of Willows Landscape and Lighting 
District.  
 
Moved/Seconded: Councilmembers Williams and Hansen     
Yes: Councilmembers Hansen, Williams, Hofhenke and Mayor Thomas 
No:  Vice Mayor Vodden   
 

c. Future of the City Swimming Pool Ad Hoc Committee and Other Civic Discussions 
Action:  Discontinue the Ad Hoc Committee and encourage current Council Swimming Pool Ad 
Hoc Committee Members to continue holding “Town Hall” meetings, on the Monday before 
regular City Council meetings, with the community on any and all topics of interest to them 
and/or the community. 
 

d. Library Board Vacancy and Appointment Process 
Action:  Appointed Councilmember Williams and Vice Mayor Vodden to serve on the Library 
Board of Trustees Subcommittee with interviews scheduled for June 21st or 22nd and 
recommend three Library Trustee appointments to the full Council. 
 

8. COMMENTS & REPORTS 
a. City Council Correspondence 
b. City Manager’s Report 
c. City Council Comments & Reports 

9. CLOSED SESSION – 7:58 PM 
No comments were received. 
 

43



  
      3 

 

a. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation  
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to § 54956.9(b): (1 case) 

  

Report from closed session: Direction was given to Council by City Attorney.   
 

10. ADJOURNMENT – 8:22 PM 

Dated:  May 11, 2023  

______________________________ 
Marti Brown, City Manager  

 

 

44



          Agenda Item #7c. 
 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

 
 
Date:  May 23, 2023 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
From: Marti Brown, City Manager 
 
Subject: Mosquito and Vector Control District Board of Trustees – Biennial Appointment 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Re-appoint Vince Holvik as the City’s representative to the Glenn County Mosquito and Vector Control 
District for a two-year term to run from July 1, 2023, through June 30, 2025.  
 
Rationale for Recommendation: 
 
Every two years the city appoints a community member to the Glenn County Mosquito and Vector 
Control District.  
 
Background: 
 
The attached letter from the Glenn County Mosquito and Vector Control District indicates it is time to 
appoint a representative from the City of Willows to serve a two-year term on the Glenn County 
Mosquito and Vector Control District Board of Trustees. 
 
Vince Holvik has been the City’s representative for the past four terms and has indicated his desire 
and willingness to serve as the City’s representative once again. 
 
Attachment:  
 
 Attachment 1:  Letter from Glenn County Mosquito and Vector Control District 

 

45



Attachment 1

46



Agenda Item #7d. 

 

________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Date:  May 23, 2023 

To:  Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers 

From:  Mar� Brown, City Manager 

Subject: County of Glenn Dra� Water Well Drilling and Standards Ordinance 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Recommenda�on: 

To review and provide any comments on the Dra� Water Well Drilling and Standards Ordinance.  

Ra�onale for Recommenda�on: 

The City of Willows is a member of the Glenn Water Authority, and all jurisdic�onal members of 
the Authority are taking the dra� ordinance to their governing boards for review and comment.  

Background: 

The atached Dra� Water Well Drilling and Standards Ordinance has been shared with Glenn 
County Drought Task Force partners and the County Water Resources Division shared the dra� 
ordinance with the Glenn County Water Resources Partners and the interested par�es for each 
of the three sub basins that touch Glenn County. This dra� ordinance was presented at the April 
10, 2023, Glenn Groundwater Authority Board of Directors Mee�ng and to the Board of 
Supervisors at their April 25, 2023, mee�ng. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None 

Atachment: 

 Atachment 1: Dra� ordinance of the County of Glenn amending the Glenn County Code 
by amending Title 20, Chapter 20.08 rela�ng to Water Well Drilling and Standards 

 
 
  

47



ORDINANCE NO.  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY OF GLENN AMENDING THE GLENN COUNTY CODE BY 
AMENDING TITLE 20, CHAPTER 20.08 RELATING TO WATER WELL DRILLING AND STANDARDS

THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF GLENN ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1:  The Glenn County Code is hereby amended by amending Title 20, Chapter 20.08 to read in its 
entirety as follows:

Chapter 20.08

WATER WELL DRILLING AND STANDARDS

Sections:

20.08.010 Purpose.
20.08.020 Authority.
20.08.030 Definitions.
20.08.040 Duties and Powers of Local Enforcement Agency.
20.08.050 Well Standards.
20.08.060 Permit Required.
20.08.070 Permit Application, Issuance and Term.
20.08.080 Exempt Wells.
20.08.090 Consultant Review Required for Non-Exempt Wells
20.08.100 Groundwater Sustainability Agency Approval.
20.08.110 Permit Approval.
20.08.120 Inspections.
20.08.130 New, Replacement and Repaired Exempt Well Minimum Depth Requirements.
20.08.140 Well Completion Report.
20.08.150 Electric Logging (E-Log) Required.
20.08.160 Replacement of Existing Wells.
20.08.170 Abandoned Well Exemption/Inactive Well
20.08.180 Well Destruction.
20.08.190 Permit Revocation, Rescission and Hazard Abatement.
20.08.200 Appeals.
20.08.210 County Action Not Guarantee.
20.08.220 Conflicting Regulations.
20.08.230 Violations & Penalties.

20.08.010 Purpose.

The Board of Supervisors finds that the protection of groundwater within the county is of major concern 
to the residents of the county. It is the purpose of this chapter to provide for the placement, construction, 
replacement, repair, modification and destruction of wells in such a manner that the groundwater of this 
county will not be contaminated, depleted or polluted, and that water obtained from wells will be suitable for 
beneficial use and will not jeopardize the health, safety or welfare of the residents of this county. In addition, 

                 Attachment 1

48



this chapter attempts to reduce potential well interference problems to existing wells, public trust resources 
of navigable waterways and potential adverse impacts to the environment, which could be caused by the 
placement, construction, replacement, repair, modification and destruction of wells where a permit is required 
under this chapter.   

20.08.020 Authority.

The chapter is adopted pursuant to the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act, Water Code Section 
13000 et seq. as amended from time to time.

20.08.030 Definitions.

The following words and phrases shall, for the purpose of this chapter, have the meanings ascribed to 
them in this section:

A. "Abandoned wells”. A well is “abandoned” if it is not used for a period of 1 year unless the owner 
demonstrates, by meeting all of the following conditions, an intent to use the well again (Health and Safety 
Code Section 115700):

1. The well shall not allow impairment of ground water quality;

2. The top of the well shall be sealed to prevent removal of the seal, prevent unauthorized 
access and illegal disposal, and prevent a safety hazard to humans and animals;

3. The well shall be marked to be easily visible and easily identified as a well; and

4. The area surrounding the well shall be kept clear of brush, debris, and waste materials.

B. "Agricultural wells" means water wells used to supply water for irrigation and growing of crops or 
production of other agricultural commodities for commercial purposes.

C. “Board” means the Glenn County Board of Supervisors.

D. "Cathodic protection well" means any artificial excavation constructed by any method for the 
purpose of installing equipment or facilities for the protection electrically of metallic equipment in contact with 
the ground commonly referred to as cathodic protection.

E. "Community water supply well" means a water well for domestic purposes in systems subject to 
Chapter 7 of Part 1 of Division 5 of the California Health and Safety Code (commencing with section 4010)
as amended from time to time.

F. "Completion or completion operation" means any work conducted after artificial excavation to 
include:

1. Placement of well casing,

2. Gravel packing,

49



3. Sealing,

4. Casing perforation, or

5. Other operations deemed necessary by the LEA.

G. “Consultant” means a California Licensed Professional Geologist or Engineer with a Certified 
Hydrogeologist Specialty Certification.

H. “County” means the County of Glenn.

I. "Contamination" means an impairment of the quality of water to a degree which creates a hazard 
to the public health through poisoning or through spread of disease.

J. "Destruction or destroy" means the complete filling of a well in such a manner that it will not produce 
water or act as a conduit for the interchange of water, when such interchange will result in deterioration of 
the quality of water in any water-bearing formations penetrated.

K. “Domestic water well” means a well devoted exclusively to the residential and related yard, garden 
and barnyard uses within the same parcel of land as the served dwelling house. Such uses do not include 
the growing of crops, or production of other agricultural commodities for commercial purposes.

L. “Electric logging” or “E-Log” means lowering a device used to measure the electric resistance of 
the rock and soil layers in the downhole portion of the well.

M. “Groundwater” means water in the zone of saturation. Groundwater is presumed to be percolating, 
although it does occur in known and definite channels.

N. "Health officer" means the Glenn County Health Officer or duly authorized registered 
environmental health specialist.

O. “Hydrology” shall mean the origin, distribution, and circulation of water through precipitation, 
streamflow, infiltration, groundwater storage, and evaporation.

P. “Inactive well” means a water well that has not failed and is not currently being used.

Q. "Industrial wells" mean water wells used to supply industry on an individual basis.

R. “Livestock well” means a water well used for the watering of livestock and other uses directly 
related to the operation of a feedlot, confined livestock operation or dairy.

S. “Local Enforcement Agency” or “LEA” means the Glenn County Environmental Health Department, 
which is designated as such by the Board of Supervisors.

T. "Monitoring well" means a well that is used for monitoring or sampling the condition of a water-
bearing aquifer, such as water pressure, depth, movement or quality.

50



U. “Navigable waters” means waterways capable of being navigated by oar or motor-propelled small 
craft, consistent with the California public right of navigation test.

V. “Overdraft” shall mean the condition of a groundwater basin where the amount of water withdrawn  
exceeds the amount of water replenishing the basin over a period of time. Also, as the point at which 
extractions from the basin exceed its safe yield plus any temporary surplus.

W. “Percolation” shall mean the movement of water through the soil to the groundwater table.

X. “Permeability” shall mean the capability of soil or other geologic formation to transmit water.

Y. "Person" includes any person, firm, association, corporation, organization, partnership, business 
trust, company, or special district formed under the laws of the State of California.

Z. “Piezometric surface” shall mean the surface to which the water in a confined aquifer will rise.

AA. "Pollution" means an alteration of the quality of water to a degree which unreasonably affects (1) 
Such waters for beneficial uses; or (2) Facilities which serve such beneficial uses. Pollution may include 
contamination.

BB. “Porosity” shall mean voids of open spaces in alluvium, other soils and rocks that can be filled with 
water.

CC. "Public nuisance," when applied to a well, means any well which threatens to impair the quality of 
ground water or otherwise jeopardize the health and safety of the public.

DD. “Public trust resources” means waterways the government is obligated to hold in trust pursuant to 
the Public Trust Doctrine for the benefit of the public for purposes of commerce, navigation, recreation, 
fishing, and preservation of wildlife habitat and natural resources.

EE. “Public water system well” means a water well that is constructed or used to supply water for 
domestic purposes in systems subject to the requirements of sections 116275 et seq. of the California Health 
and Safety Code (California State Safe Drinking Water Act) as amended from time to time.

FF. "Radius of influence" shall mean the radial distance from the center of a well bore to the point 
where there is no lowering of the water table or potentiometric surface (the edge of the well's cone of 
depression).

GG. "Recharge" shall mean flow to groundwater storage from precipitation, infiltration from streams, 
irrigation, spreading basins, and other sources of water.

HH. “Repair” or “Modification” means changing the dimensions of a well, deepening of a well, 
reperforation or the addition of an inner well casing.

II. "Replacement well" means the construction of a new well to replace an existing well where the 
existing well is destroyed under permit within 90 days of completion of the replacement well.

JJ. “Safe yield" shall mean the maximum quantity of water which can be withdrawn annually from a 
groundwater supply under a given set of conditions without causing an undesirable result. The phrase 

51



"Undesirable Result" is intended to refer to a gradual lowering of the groundwater levels resulting in, or 
tending to result in, the eventual depletion of or the substantial diminution of the supply of water.

KK. "Saltwater intrusion" shall mean the movement of saltwater into freshwater aquifers.

LL. "Specific capacity" shall mean the volume of water pumped from a well in gallons per minute per 
foot of drawdown.

MM. "Spreading water" shall mean discharging native or imported water to a permeable area for the 
purpose of allowing it to percolate to the zone of saturation. Spreading, artificial recharge and replenishment 
all refer to operations used to place water in a groundwater basin.

NN. "Test or exploratory hole" means an excavation used for determining the nature of underground
geological or hydrological conditions, whether by seismic investigation, direct observation, or any other 
means.

OO. "Transmissivity" shall mean the rate of flow of water through an aquifer.

PP. "Usable storage capacity" shall mean the quantity of groundwater of acceptable quality that can 
be economically withdrawn from storage.

QQ. "Water table" shall mean the surface where groundwater is encountered in a well in an unconfined 
aquifer.

RR. "Well" means any artificial excavation constructed by any method for the purpose of extracting 
water from or injecting water into, the underground, or for providing cathodic protection or electrical grounding 
of equipment, or for making tests or observations of underground conditions, or for any other similar purpose. 
Wells include, but shall not be limited to, community water supply wells, individual domestic wells, livestock 
wells, industrial wells, agricultural wells, cathodic protection wells, electrical grounding wells, test and 
exploratory holes and observation wells, as defined herein, and other wells whose regulation is necessary to 
fulfill the purpose of this chapter. This definition shall not include oil and gas wells, or geothermal wells 
constructed under the jurisdiction of the State Department of Conservation, except those wells converted to 
use as water wells.

SS.  "Well drilling contractor" means a contractor licensed in accordance with the provisions of the   
Contractor’s License Law, Chapter 9 of Division 3 of the Business and Professions Code (commencing with 
section 7000), as amended from time to time, and who shall possess a valid C-57 water well contractor’s 
license.

TT. "Zone of saturation" shall mean the area below the water table in which the soil is completely 
saturated with groundwater.

20.08.040 Duties & Powers of the Local Enforcement Agency (LEA).

A. The LEA shall enforce all the provisions of this chapter and may issue correction notices, notices 
of violation, stop work orders, and citations for any violations of this chapter, or any permit issued pursuant 
to this chapter.

52



B. Nothing contained in this chapter shall be construed to prevent the LEA from requiring compliance 
with higher requirements than those contained herein where such higher requirements are essential to protect 
public health, safety, welfare, water quality and the environment. 

20.08.050 Well Standards.

A. In order to provide minimum standards for the proper regulation of well placement, construction, 
replacement,  repair, modification and destruction, the State of California water well standards (Department 
of Water Resources Bulletin 74-81 and 74-90) which may be amended from time to time, are hereby adopted, 
incorporated and made a part of this chapter by this reference without further publication, as though set forth 
at length in this chapter and are hereby declared to be the well placement, construction, replacement, repair, 
modification and destruction code of Glenn County, except where superseded by this chapter. 

B. All annular well seals shall extend at least five (5) feet into the first low permeability stratum 
encountered and to at least fifty (50) feet. The annular well seal minimum depth may be reduced when salinity 
or bedrock restrictive layers are encountered during well construction, provided that the well complies with 
all other sections of this chapter. The LEA shall require that the well complies with the annular well seal 
minimum depth requirements to the extent reasonably possible. Salinity or bedrock restrictive layers shall be 
confirmed thru samples, in writing, and approved by the LEA. 

C. All well destruction seals shall extend at least fifty (50) feet below ground surface or to the total 
depth if the well is less than fifty (50) feet in depth.

D. All agriculture, industrial, community water supply, domestic, and livestock water wells shall be 
tested for total dissolved solids (TDS) and the results shall be submitted to the LEA before the casing is 
installed. The Department of Water Resources (DWR) considers groundwater with a TDS concentration 
above 1,000 mg/L to be brackish or saline and would require treatment prior to use for agriculture industrial
or drinking water. 

E. All saline, poor-quality, polluted or contaminated portions of the aquifer shall be sealed from good-
quality water portions of the aquifer to prevent contamination.

F. All agriculture, industrial, community water supply, domestic, and livestock water wells shall be 
disinfected, using the conventional and acceptable methods, at the time of the construction, replacement, 
repair or modification and prior to the well being used or placed into service. Water used for the drilling of 
community water supply and domestic water supply wells shall be secured from a potable source or another 
groundwater well. 

G. All agriculture, industrial, community water supply, domestic, and livestock water wells shall be 
located with a minimum setback of fifty (50) feet, as measured from top of the bank, from, but not limited to, 
lakes, rivers, streams, ponds, canals, reservoirs and wetlands.

H. All agriculture, industrial, community water supply, domestic, and livestock water wells shall be 
located with a minimum setback of ten (10) feet from a property line.

I. All agriculture, industrial, community water supply, domestic, and livestock water wells shall have 
a casing that extends at least eighteen (18) inches above all known levels of flooding and at least eighteen 
(18) inches above grade.

53



J. Steel well casing shall be no less than ten gauge in thickness.

20.08.060 Permit Required.

No person, firm, association, organization, partnership, joint venture, business trust, corporation, 
company, federal, state or local agency, or special district formed under the laws of this state shall, within the 
County of Glenn, construct, replace, repair, modify or destroy a well unless a permit has first been obtained 
and approved by the LEA as provided in this chapter.

20.08.070 Permit Application, Issuance & Term.

Applications for permits shall be made to the LEA together with the required fee established by the 
board of supervisors of the County of Glenn. If construction, replacement, repair, modification or destruction 
of a well is begun prior to obtaining a permit, the fee for such permit may be doubled, but shall not relieve 
any person from fully complying with the provisions of this chapter nor from any other penalties described in 
this chapter. Applications shall be made on forms provided by the LEA. Applications for permits to construct, 
replace, repair, modify or destroy a well shall include the following information:

A. Location of the well on the property/parcels and the location and size in acreage of the contiguous 
properties and assessor’s parcel number to be served.

B. Well location longitude and latitude.

C. Name, address and contractor’s license number of the person who will construct the well.

D. The proposed depth of the well.

E. The proposed well casing diameter.

F. The proposed screen depth intervals.

G. The size of the proposed pump.

H. The proposed use of the well.

I. An accurate plot plan which will show the following:

1. Property lines with dimensions and existing and proposed buildings.

2. Sewage disposal systems, sewer lines, and any other works carrying or containing sewage 
within two hundred (200) feet of the proposed well.

3. All intermittent perennial, natural or artificial bodies of water or watercourses.

4. All other existing wells.

5. The approximate surface drainage pattern of the property and areas subject to flooding.

6. All existing and proposed structures.

54



J. Such additional information as required by the LEA. 

K. The LEA is authorized to reduce the amount of information required to be included in a permit 
application when applicable based upon the permit type.

  L. The LEA shall review all completed permit applications. If the application, site evaluation or plans 
do not conform to the requirements of this chapter and all pertinent laws and ordinances, the application shall 
be denied in writing, including the reasons for denial. If the LEA is satisfied that the proposed work conforms 
to the requirements of this chapter and all pertinent laws and ordinances, a water well permit shall be issued.

M. The LEA shall stamp or endorse in writing all permits and all sets of approved plans. One set of 
such approved plans and the permit shall be retained by the LEA and another set shall be kept at the well 
construction site, open to inspection by the LEA at all reasonable times. All work shall conform to the 
approved plans for which the permit has been issued and any approved amendments.

N. Every permit expires one year after issuance. If the permittee cannot complete the work within one 
year, the LEA may extend the permit for one additional year if the permittee applies for an extension prior to 
expiration of the permit and pays the required fees.

020.08.080 Exempt Wells.

The following wells shall not be subject to requirements set forth in sections 20.08.090 and 20.08.100:

A. Wells that will provide less than two (2) acre-feet per year of groundwater for individual domestic 
users, livestock or that will exclusively provide groundwater to public water supply systems as defined in 
section 116275 of the California Health and Safety Code as may be amended from time to time.

B. Limited purpose wells including:

1. Fire suppression wells;

2. Cathodic protection wells;

3. Geothermal wells;

4. Soil borings;

5. Monitoring and mitigation wells; and

6. Exploratory wells used only for the limited purpose of determining the presence of sufficient 
potable water.

20.08.090 Consultant Review Required for Non-Exempt Wells.

A. All non-exempt well permit applications shall include the proposed well construction design along 
with the maximum pump size and specifications.  Those applications shall be reviewed by a consultant, 
retained by the County, for the purpose of conducting hydrogeologic studies to determine the likelihood that 
extractions from the proposed well will cause: interference with the production and function of existing nearby 

55



wells; subsidence that would adversely impact or damage nearby infrastructure or cause exceedance of 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan minimum thresholds for land subsidence; groundwater level declines that 
will cause exceedance of Groundwater Sustainability Plan minimum thresholds for groundwater levels; 
exceedance of Groundwater Sustainability Plan minimum thresholds for water quality; or, exacerbate a 
substantial adverse impact on public trust resources of navigable waters.  When applicable, the consultant 
shall provide well design mitigation measures intended to eliminate impacts to nearby wells, land subsidence, 
groundwater levels, water quality and public trust resources of navigable waters.  The cost of such studies 
and design mitigation measures shall be borne by the applicant.  

B. The consultant shall use the following criteria when reviewing well permit applications:

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

C. The consultants hydrogeological study results and well design requirements shall be submitted to 
the LEA within thirty (30) days of receiving the application package.  The results shall be in report form and 
in a format approved by the county.

20.08.100 Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) Approval.

A permit application for a new, replacement, modified or repaired non-exempt well in a basin subject to 
the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act, and classified as medium or high-priority, shall include 
written verification from the GSA managing the basin, or area of the basin where the well is proposed to be 
located, that groundwater extraction by the proposed well would not be inconsistent with any sustainable 
groundwater management program established in any applicable Groundwater Sustainability Plan adopted 
by that GSA and would not decrease the likelihood of achieving a sustainability goal for the basin covered by 
such a plan. 

20.08.110 Permit Approval.

The LEA shall approve or deny the permit after reviewing the application and the report of the consultant.  
As a condition of approval, the applicant may be required to implement the design mitigation measures 
required by the LEA.  The LEA may require additional hydrogeological studies deemed necessary for 
consideration of the application.  The cost of such additional studies shall be borne by the applicant.   

20.08.120 Inspections.

A. The LEA is hereby empowered to enter upon private property in order to make inspections for the 
purpose of enforcing the provisions of this chapter in the manner set forth in Title 1, Chapter 14, Section 
1.14.020 of this code.  A final inspection of the work performed on any well pursuant to this chapter shall be 

56



made by the LEA unless such inspection is waived by the LEA. No permittee shall be deemed to have 
complied with this chapter or the conditions of the permit until such inspection has been either made and the 
installation approved, or the inspection waived by the LEA.

B. The LEA shall inspect the proposed well location before any drilling begins to confirm the location 
meets the provisions of this chapter.

C. The LEA shall be notified a minimum of twenty-four (24) hours prior to installing or placing a 
sanitary seal. Drillers who anticipate completing a well in less than a day may notify the LEA twenty-four (24) 
hours prior to commencement of drilling and provide the anticipated time at which the sanitary seal shall be 
installed.  Notification does not guarantee a requested inspection date or time.

20.08.130 New, Replacement and Repaired Exempt Well Minimum Depth Requirements.

A. New, replacement and repaired exempt wells shall extend at least fifty (50) feet below the most 
current minimum threshold established by the applicable Groundwater Sustainability Plan adopted by the 
corresponding Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA). The minimum threshold may vary depending on 
the location within the groundwater basin.  The minimum permitted well depth is not a guarantee as to water 
availability or production, but rather a minimum requirement only for the specific area.

B. The minimum depth requirement may be reduced when salinity or bedrock restrictive layers are 
encountered during well construction and all other mitigative options have been exhausted, so long as the 
well is in compliance with all other sections of this chapter. The LEA shall require that the well complies with 
the minimum depth requirements to the extent reasonably possible. Salinity and/or bedrock restrictive layers 
shall be confirmed thru samples, in writing and approved by the LEA.

C. Minimum depth requirements shall only apply to wells located within an established high or medium 
priority groundwater basin.

20.08.140 Well Completion Report.

As required by section 13751 of the California Water Code, which may be amended from time to time, 
every person who digs, bores, or drills a water well, cathodic protection well, groundwater monitoring well, or 
geothermal heat exchange well; abandons or destroys such a well; or deepens or reperforates such a well;
shall file a Well Completion Report of that well with the LEA within 60 days of the date of completion.  

20.08.150 Electric Logging (E-Log) Required.

A. If a well is larger than eight (8) inches, a test hole shall be drilled, and the E-Log submitted to the 
LEA for review. In addition, the proposed well construction shall meet the conditions listed below: 

1. To the extent feasible, controlling hydrological conditions that existed before the well was 
drilled and constructed, including the elimination of physical hazards.

2. Prevent pollution of groundwater.

3. Preserve the integrity of the aquifers.

4. Prevent intermingling of potable and irrigable waters with saline and other unsuitable waters.

57



B. The purpose of these conditions is to manage interactions between new, replacement, modified 
and existing neighboring wells.

C. The LEA does not design the proposed well. The applicant and contractor are responsible for 
submitting the proposed well design.

D. Upon receiving the proposed well design, and prior to approving drilling of the well, the LEA will 
review and determine if the requirements of this chapter, and all pertinent laws and ordinances, have been 
met.

20.08.160 Replacement of Existing Wells.

A. If a failed existing well is destroyed, a replacement well shall not be subject to the requirements 
set forth in section 20.08.090, if all of the following conditions are met:

1. The replacement well is drilled within one hundred (100) feet of the failed existing well;

2. The replacement well has the same casing diameter, casing depth, pump size and 
substantially similar screen interval(s) as the failed existing well;

3. The replacement well is in compliance with all other sections of this chapter; and

4. The failed existing well is destroyed under permit and as set forth in section 20.08.170.

The Well Completion Report (WCR) of the failed existing well shall be submitted to the LEA to 
confirm the construction requirements. When a WCR does not exist, construction requirements
may be confirmed by a method acceptable to the LEA.

B. If a replacement well must be constructed as a result of the failure of an existing well, the LEA shall
condition issuance of a permit on the mandatory destruction of the existing well in accordance with the 
methods and requirements of this chapter.  A well may be deemed to have failed under the following 
circumstances:  

1. When groundwater drops to a level below the useful depth of the well.

2. When the well yields sand or soil in quantities to make it unusable for domestic, livestock,
agricultural or industrial purposes.

3. When contamination is present.

4. When the well is inside of the established minimum setback requirements from potential 
sources of contamination.

5. When established setback requirements do not exist and, in the judgment of the LEA, 
degradation of the groundwater is likely to occur or continue if the well is not destroyed.

20.08.170 Abandoned Well Exemption/Inactive Well.

58



A. The well owner shall declare to the LEA in writing, on a form provided by the County, their intent 
for future use of an inactive well. The declaration form shall be adequate for as long as the required 
conditions are maintained.

B. If the required conditions set forth in the declaration form are not maintained, the inactive well shall 
be destroyed according to this chapter and this requirement shall be a condition of all future county 
permits.

20.08.180 Well Destruction.

All abandoned wells, as defined in this chapter, shall be destroyed in accordance with this chapter and to the 
following standards:

A. A well that is no longer useful (including exploration and test holes) shall be destroyed in order to
ensure that the groundwater supply is protected and preserved for future use and to eliminate potential 
physical hazards. 

B. After all reasonable efforts to clear contamination have been made, a well that contains poor-
quality water, pollutants, contaminants or is a potential hazard to the purity of the groundwater, shall be
destroyed by completely filling the well with an approved sealing material or by destruction standards and 
methods required by the LEA. 

C. Observation or test wells used in the investigation or management of groundwater basins by 
government agencies or research/engineering organizations are not considered abandoned if they are 
maintained for that purpose; however, such wells shall be covered with an appropriate cap, bearing the label 
"Observation Well" and the name of the agency or organization, and shall be locked when measurements 
are not being made. When these wells are no longer used for this purpose, or for supplying water, they shall 
be considered abandoned. 

20.08.190 Permit Revocation, Rescission and Hazard Abatement.

A. A permit issued pursuant to this chapter may be revoked by the LEA if the LEA determines that a 
violation of this chapter exists, that written notice has been directed to the permittee specifying the violation, 
and that the permittee has failed or neglected to take corrective action within the time specified in the notice.

B. A permit may also be rescinded by the LEA upon determination that the permit was obtained by 
false statement or misrepresentation. The permittee shall be notified in writing of the action and the rescission 
shall be effective upon the date of issuance of the notification.

C. Whenever the LEA determines that any well on private property has become a hazard to public 
safety; endangers property; or adversely affects the safety, use, or stability of an adjacent property, an 
overhead or underground utility, or a public way or watercourse; or could adversely affect the water quality 
of any watercourse or water body, the LEA shall provide written notice to the owner or other person in control 
of the property, identifying the hazard; what must be done to eliminate the hazard; and, the time within which 
the actions must be taken.  Upon receipt of the written notice from the LEA, the owner or other person in 
control of the property shall, within the time specified in the notice, take those actions necessary to eliminate 
the hazard and conform with the requirements of this chapter. Failure to eliminate the hazard within the time 
prescribed could result in violations and penalties pursuant to this chapter and all pertinent laws and 
ordinances.

59



20.08.200 Appeals.

A.  The applicant or any aggrieved party may appeal a decision of the LEA or any notice of violation 
issued.  Any such administrative appeal shall be commenced by filing a written request within ten (10) days 
after service of notice or determination with the clerk of the board of supervisors for a hearing. If the tenth 
(10th) day falls on a county holiday or weekend, the time to request the hearing shall be extended to the next 
day that is not a holiday or weekend. The written request shall include the name, address, and telephone 
number of the person requesting the appeal and any applicable project number, or other means of 
identification, and the date on which the decision was made. The time requirement for filing such a written 
request shall be deemed jurisdictional and may not be waived. In the absence of a timely filed written request 
that complies fully with the requirements of this section, the findings of the LEA or the enforcing officer 
contained in the notice or determination shall become final and conclusive on the eleventh (11th) day 
following service of the notice or determination.

B. Upon timely receipt of a written request for hearing which complies with the requirements of this 
section, the clerk of the board of supervisors shall set a hearing date. The clerk shall send written notice of 
the hearing date to the requesting party, to any other parties upon whom the notice was served, and to the 
LEA and/or enforcing officer. 

C. Unless jurisdiction over a specific violation or determination is exercised by the board of 
supervisors at a meeting of the board of supervisors, the hearings required by this chapter and California 
Government Code Section 25845, to be heard by the board of supervisors are hereby delegated to an 
administrative hearing officer established by Chapter 2.28 of the Glenn County Code.  

D. Pursuant to California Government Code Section 25845, subdivision (i), the administrative hearing 
officer shall preside over the hearing and decide evidentiary issues and any requests for delays.

E. The administrative hearing officer shall not determine the legality of this chapter or legality of the 
enforcement procedures used. The administrative hearing officer shall determine if the decision of the LEA 
or the enforcing officer conforms to this chapter and is supported by a preponderance of the evidence 
presented by the LEA or enforcing officer or his or her department. The hearing shall be recorded. The record 
and evidence shall be preserved for three years.

F. If requested by the administrative hearing officer, the County Counsel shall appoint a deputy county 
counsel to impartially advise the administrative hearing officer. He or she shall not have been involved in 
assisting the LEA or the enforcing officer, or the enforcing officer’s department, on the determination or 
enforcement action at issue.

G. Any hearing conducted pursuant to this chapter need not be conducted according to technical rules 
of evidence. Any relevant sworn evidence shall be admitted if it is the sort of evidence on which responsible 
persons are accustomed to rely in the conduct of serious affairs regardless of the existence of any common 
law or statutory rule which might make improper the admission of the evidence over objection in civil actions. 
The administrative hearing officer has discretion to exclude evidence if its probative value is substantially 
outweighed by the probability that its admission will necessitate undue consumption of time.

H. The written findings and recommendations of the administrative hearing officer shall be referred to 
the board of supervisors, and the appellant, within fifteen (15) days of the conclusion of the hearing. The 
board of supervisors may adopt the recommendation without further notice of hearing or may set the matter 

60



for a de novo hearing before the board of supervisors. No specific form is required for the findings and 
recommendations, which need only be generally stated. Written notice of the administrative hearing officer’s 
findings and recommendations shall be mailed to the appellant at the address listed on the application and/or 
appeal.  

G. The decision of the board of supervisors, which shall be by resolution, shall be final and conclusive. 
A failure to appeal the determination of the LEA or the enforcing officer will constitute a failure to exhaust 
administrative remedies by the responsible person(s).

H. This section does not authorize appeals to the board of supervisors from any action of the LEA 
authorized or required by state law or regulation.

20.08.210 County Action Not Guarantee.

This chapter shall not be construed as imposing upon the county any liability or responsibility for damage 
resulting from defective placement, construction, replacement, modification, repair or destruction of any well 
or for damage to, or interference with, wells on adjoining or other properties. Neither the issuance of a permit 
pursuant to this chapter, final inspection of work performed on any well pursuant to this chapter, nor the 
waiver of such final inspection shall be, nor construed to be, a guarantee by the County of Glenn that suitable 
water in sufficient quantity and quality is available from any well.

20.08.220 Conflicting Regulations.

Where there is a conflict between the regulations of this chapter and any other chapter of local, state or 
federal regulation, the greater or more stringent regulation or restriction shall apply and shall be enforced by 
persons authorized in this chapter.

20.08.230 Violations and Penalties.

Pursuant to section 1.13.010 of this code, any person who violates any regulatory or prohibitory provision 
of this chapter is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by a fine not exceeding five thousand ($5,000.00) 
dollars, or by imprisonment not exceeding six months, or by both such fine and imprisonment. A separate 
offense is committed upon each day or portion thereof during or on which a violation occurs or continues.  
Nothing herein shall be deemed to abrogate or annul the right to enjoin or abate such violations by civil action.

SECTION 2:  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, portion, or phrase of this ordinance is for any 
reason held illegal, invalid, or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof. The Board of Supervisors hereby 
declares that it would have passed this Chapter and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, portion, or 
phrase hereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, or 
phrases be declared illegal, invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION 3:  This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after the date of its adoption and before the 
expiration of fifteen (15) days from the date of passage thereof shall be published at least once in a 
newspaper of general circulation, in the County of Glenn, State of California, together with the names of the 
members of the Board of Supervisors voting for and against the same.

61



PASSED AND ADOPTED this ________ day of April 2023, by the Glenn County Board of Supervisors, State 
of California, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

Chairman, Board of Supervisors
ATTEST:
SCOTT H. DE MOSS

By: 
Clerk of the Board

APPROVED AS TO FORM

By: 
William J. Vanasek, County Counsel

62



Agenda Item #7e. 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

Date: May 23, 2023 

To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Patrick Piatt, Community Development & Services Director 
John Wanger, City Engineer 

Subject: Tehama Street Bridge Project – Accept Improvements 

Recommendation: 

Approve the attached resolution accepting the improvements associated with the Tehama Street 
Bridge Project, authorize the filing of the Notice of Completion and release of surety, and approve a 
budget adjustment for the overall project. 

Background: 

This project made emergency repairs to the upstream and downstream ends of the concrete apron 
that is below the bridge on the floor of the GCID canal.  

The project has recently been completed by All-American Construction to the City’s satisfaction.  The 
total construction cost was $19,312.78.  This was significantly under the awarded contract amount of 
$45,660 and the estimated repair costs of $60,000 as shown in the Capital Improvement Program. 

Discussion & Analysis: 

Based upon the satisfactory completion of the work, Staff recommends that the City Council accept the 
improvements, authorize the City Engineer to file the Notice of Completion and authorize the release 
of all bonds for this project except for the maintenance bond, which will be retained for 1 year to cover 
any maintenance/repair issues that may arise. 

Fiscal Impact: 

The source of funding for this project is RSTP monies. The overall budget and expenditures for this 
project is summarized as follows: 

Approved Actual 
Budget  Expenditure 

Construction:        $ 45,660 $19,313 
Contingency (10%):   $   4,566 $     0 
CM/Inspection:         $   5,500 $  5,838 
Estimated total         $ 55,726 $ 25,151 

Attachment: 
• Attachment 1 – Resolution XX-2023 

Exhibit A - Notice of Completion
63



Attachment 1 
 

 
 
 

CITY OF WILLOWS 
RESOLUTION NO. __-2023 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
ACCEPTING THE IMPROVEMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE TEHAMA STREET BRIDGE PROJECT, 
AUTHORIZING THE RELEASE OF RETENTION AND AUTHORIZING THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

TO BE FILED FOR THE PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, at the January 24, 2023, City Council meeting, the City Council approved 
entering into a contract with All-American Construction for the Tehama Street Bridge Project 
("Project") and established an overall project budget; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Project has been inspected and determined to have been completed in 
accordance with the contract requirements; and 

 
WHEREAS, based upon the foregoing, staff recommends acceptance of the Project on 

behalf of the City. 
. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The City hereby accepts the improvements associated with the Project. 
2. Authorizes the City Engineer to release the Performance and Labor & Material 

surety posted with this project; and to hold the Maintenance Bond for a period of 
one year from the date of this resolution, at which time the City Engineer is 
authorized to release said bond if the improvements remain in good condition and 
there are no issues to be resolved. 

3. Authorizes and directs the City Engineer to file a Notice of Completion concerning 
the Project with the Glenn County Clerk’s Office within ten (10) days of the date of 
this Resolution. 

4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately. 
5. All portions of this resolution are severable.  Should any individual component of 

this Resolution be adjudged to be invalid and unenforceable by a body of competent 
jurisdiction, then the remaining resolution portions shall be and continue in full 
force and effect, except as to those resolution portions that have been adjudged 
invalid.  The City Council of the City of Willows hereby declares that it would have 
adopted this Resolution and each section, subsection, clause, sentence, phrase and 
other portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that one or more section subsection, 
clause sentence, phrase or other portion may be held invalid or unconstitutional.   

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Willows, State of California this 

23rd day of May 2023, by the following vote:  

64



Attachment 1 
 

 
 
AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
APPROVED:      ATTESTED: 
 
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Richard Thomas, Mayor    Tara Rustenhoven, Deputy City Clerk 
  

65



Exhibit A 

WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 

City Clerk 

City of Willows 

201 Pacific Avenue 

Willows, CA   95988 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the undersigned City of Willows, 201 N. Lassen Street, Willows, California, owners 
in fee of Tehama Street Bridge within the City of Willows, California, observed certain construction work to be 
performed within the City of Willows, County of Glenn, which work is generally described as follows:   

The Tehama Street Bridge Repairs included repairs to the upstream and downstream ends of the concrete apron that 
is below the bridge on the floor of the GCID canal. 

That the contractor for the performance of such work was awarded to All-American Construction and that said work 
was satisfactorily completed on April 28, 2023.  The final construction cost for the project was $19,313. 

This notice is given pursuant to Section 9204 of the Civil Code of the State of California. 

This is to certify that the Notice of Completion above is 
hereby authorized by order of the Council of the City of 
Willows pursuant to Council Resolution No. ____ dated 
May 23, 2023, and owner consents to recordation 
thereof by its duly authorized officer. 

City of Willows 

A Municipal Corporation 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the information is 
true and correct. 

By:           

_______________________, City Engineer 

Dated: May 23, 2023     

66



Agenda Item #7f. 

 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 
Date:   May 23, 2023 

To:   Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers 

From:   Patrick Piatt, Community Development & Services Director 
  Marti Brown, City Manager 

Subject:  Solid Waste Management Parcel Fee 
 

Recommendation: 

Adopt a resolution (Attachment 1) extending service charges imposed on improved real 
property within the incorporated area of the City of Willows for the use of and/or ability to use 
the Glenn County Solid Waste System during fiscal year 2023-24.  

Rationale for Recommendation: 

While no fee increase is proposed for this fiscal year, it is still required to annually adopt the fee 
structure for the fiscal year. 

Background:  

Residential, commercial, and industrial parcels in the City of Willows are charged a fee for 
disposal of solid waste at the Glenn County Disposal site.  The County of Glenn collects a fee 
from all properties within the City of Willows, for the operation and maintenance of the solid 
waste facility per an agreement with the City dated March 17, 1998 (Attachment 2). 

Sections 5470-5473 of the California Health and Safety Code provide for the Board of 
Supervisors of any County to establish a schedule of fees to be imposed for the operation and 
maintenance of county waste disposal sites. Section 5471 also provides that prior to imposing 
this fee, the Board of Supervisors shall obtain the consent of the legislative bodies of the cities.  

For FY 2022-23, the parcel fee is proposed to remain $42.74 per unit reflecting no fee increase 
from the previous year. 

Fiscal Impact:  

There is no fiscal impact.  

  

67



Agenda Item #7f. 

Attachments: 

 Attachment 1 - Resolution xx-2023 
 Attachment 2 - Agreement 

 

68



Attachment 1 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF WILLOWS 
RESOLUTION NO. XX-2023 

 
ANNUAL RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS CONSENTING TO THE 

EXTENSION OF SERVICE CHARGES IMPOSED ON IMPROVED REAL PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
INCORPORATED AREA OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 FOR THE USE 

AND/OR ABILITY TO USE THE GLENN COUNTY SOLID WASTE SYSTEM 
 
WHEREAS, California Health and Safety Code Section 5471 authorizes the setting and collection 
of charges for services and facilities furnished by the County in connection with water, sewer, 
and/or sanitation; and 

WHEREAS, California Health and Safety Code Section 5471 dictates that revenues derived from 
the collection of charges for services shall be used only for the acquisition, construction, 
reconstruction, maintenance, operation of those water, sewer, and/or sanitation systems; and 

WHEREAS, California Health and Safety Code Section 5473 provides for said fees to be collected 
on the tax roll; and 

WHEREAS, the Glenn County Board of Supervisors has determined that it is in the best interest 
of the residents, businesses, and property owners in the County to have the ability to use the 
Glenn County Solid Waste System; and 

WHEREAS, the Willows City Council, as a member of the Glenn County Waste Management 
Agency, supports the operation of the Glenn County Solid Waste System; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Willows does not have a City solid waste disposal site; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Willows City Council does hereby consent to the 
extension of an annual fee of $42.74 to be imposed upon each dwelling unit and 
commercial/industrial establishment located on the real improved property within the 
incorporated areas of the City for the purpose of using or having the ability to use the Glenn 
County Solid Waste Disposal System. 

THIS RESOLUTION was passed by the Willows City Council this 23th day of May, 2023 by the 
following roll call vote: 

 

AYES:   
NOES:    
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  

69



Attachment 1 
 

 

 
APPROVED:      ATTESTED: 
 
 
________________________________      __________________________________ 
Richard Thomas, Mayor     Tara Rustenhoven, Deputy City Clerk 

70



           Attachment 2

71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
DISCUSSION & ACTION 

CALENDAR 

80



Agenda Item #8a. 

 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 
Date:   May 23, 2022 

To:   Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers 

From:  Nathan Monck, Fire Chief 
Pat Piatt, Community Development & Services Director 
Marti Brown, City Manager 

Subject:  Weed Abatement Contract Award  
 

Recommendation: 

Award Weed Abatement Contract to Robert Burt Construction. 

Rationale for Recommendation:   

As part of the City’s fire prevention efforts, every year weed abatement efforts are undertaken 
throughout the city and on city properties.  

Background: 

On April 25, 2023, The Willows City Council approved the 2023 Weed Abatement Schedule (5-0 
vote). Staff were directed to solicit bids for a weed abatement contractor for the 2022-23 Weed 
Abatement Season. Notice of bid solicitation was posted in the local newspapers. Two bid 
proposals were received.  

Discussion & Analysis: 

At the conclusion of the open and competitive bid process, two bid packets were received, both 
by local contractors. Bid packets received were reviewed by Pat Piatt, Community Development 
& Services Director, to avoid any potential conflicts of interest.  

These potential perceptual conflicts of interest are due to the following:  

1. Tony Tapia has worked with and under the Fire Chief in the past on multiple projects, 
and  

2. The owner of Robert Burt Construction is an active volunteer firefighter whom the Fire 
Chief has also worked with on multiple projects.  

81



Agenda Item #8a. 

Both potential contractors would be able to fulfill the services as described in the weed 
abatement bid form. In addition, both submitted bid packets that were deemed complete.  

After reviewing the bid documents, Robert Burt Construction was determined to be the lowest 
responsible bidder, meeting all minimum requirements by Pat Piatt, Community Development 
& Services Director.  

Fiscal Impact: 

The exact fiscal impact is unknown and dependent on the responsiveness of the public. The 
total cost of the contract shall not exceed $40,000 without prior written authorization by the 
City.  

Attachments:  

 Attachment 1: Robert Burt Construction Bid Form 
 Attachment 2: Tony Tapia Construction Bid Form 

82



Attachment 1

83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



                                       Attachment 2 

CITY OF WILLOWS - CONTRACTUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Contractor 

-

Project Title 

WEED ABATEMENT SERVICES 

Budget Account Number 

301-4130.150

THIS CONTRACTUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (Agreement) is entered into on

_____ , 2023, between the City of Willows, a municipal corporation under the laws of

the State of California, (City) and � �-;;:_ , an individual, dba

:z;;,,, �t;: �/4z. hereinafter referred to as "Contractor''.

ril� E C E I V ED 
� � 

MAY 1 2 2023 /1

City of Willows 

Approved by the Willows City Council on April 25, 2023 

102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



Agenda Item: #8b.  

______________________________________________________________________________
_____ 

 

Date:   May 23, 2023 

To:   Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers 

From:   Pat Piatt, Community Development & Services Director 
  Marti Brown, City Manager 

Subject:  Green and Jefferson Streets Urgent Repair Project - Budget Adjustment 
 

Recommendation: 

Authorize a budget adjustment of $39,653 to the contract with All-American Construction, Inc. 
for the Green and Jefferson Streets Urgent Repair Project, bringing the total not to exceed 
amount to $104,653, which will be funded with a combination of Gas Tax, SB1 and/or RSTP 
Funds.  

Background: 

The portion of Green Street between North Lassen and North Butte Streets needs urgent 
repair. The westerly 200 feet +/- is fully within the City limits and it is in very poor condition 
requiring immediate attention.  Additionally, the cul-de-sac at the northly end of Jefferson 
Street is in very poor condition and is also in need of urgent repair. 

This item was approved by the City Council on January 10, 2023, and the Council authorized the 
City Manager to execute a contract with All-American Construction for urgent work with a 
construction budget of $57,000.  The work initially included the first 200 feet of Green Street 
east of the intersection of Green and North Lassen Streets, as well as partial paving off the cul-
de-sac at the north end of Jefferson Street. 
 
At the February 14 meeting, the property owner at 445 Green Street mentioned that there is a 
low point in the curb and gutter that ponds when it rains.  The property owner thought it was 
about 20 to 25 feet of length of curb, gutter and sidewalk would need to be replaced.  The 
Council directed staff to investigate the cost to repair this section of the street as part of this 
project and return to the Council with a recommended budget adjustment.   
 
Discussion & Analysis: 

Staff reviewed the matter and, based on field measurements, it was determined that 100 feet 
of curb, gutter and sidewalk will need to be replaced in order to ensure that water drains 
easterly towards the existing ditch. All-American Construction estimated that it will cost 
$21,730 to demolish, regrade the base material under these facilities, and replace the curb, 
gutter and sidewalk.  Staff compared this estimate with the unit costs from the recent North 
Lassen Street and Pacific Avenue projects and the pricing is consistent with both of those 
projects. 
 

121



Agenda Item: #8b. 

Additionally, since approval, the volume of rain received this past season has contributed to 
further degradation of the cul-de-sac on Jefferson Street.  The entire bulb end of the cul-de-sac 
now needs paving, as opposed to what was originally estimated (partial paving of roughly ¼ of 
the bulb end of the cul-de-sac). The additional paving will add another $17,844 to the Jefferson 
Street work, bringing the total to $23,844 (the original $6,000 plus $17,844.)  This revised 
estimate uses the same unit costs as the original estimate. 

Based on the revised estimate from the contractor for curb, gutter and sidewalk work on Green 
Street and the additional paving work on Jefferson Street, staff is recommending that a budget 
adjustment be approved for this contract adding an additional $39,653.  

Fiscal Impact: 

Based on the revised numbers for the project, the overall recommended budget for this project 
is as follows: 

Original Construction Cost:         $ 48,079 
Contingency:       $   5,400 
CM/Inspection:         $   5,600 (estimated) 
Additional curb/gutter/sidewalk    $ 21,730 
Original Jefferson Street paving $   6,000 
Additional Jefferson Street paving $ 17,844 

NEW TOTAL PROJECT COST $104,653 

It should be noted that even considering the revised numbers, the overall project budget is less 
than the estimated cost in the Capital Improvement Program (CIP), Project ST-006, which 
projects $109,655. The Gas Tax Fund will be the primary funding source for this project. 

Attachment: 

• Attachment 1: Resolution XX-2023

122



Attachment 1 
 

 
 

 
City of Willows  

Resolution xx-2023 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS, CALIFORNIA,  
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER, OR HER DESIGNEE, TO AMEND THE CONTRACT WITH ALL-
AMERICAN CONSTRUCTION, INC. FOR URGENT STREET REPAIRS ON GREEN AND JEFFERSON 

STREETS PROJECT AND ADJUST THE OVERALL BUDGET FOR THE PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, on January 10, 2023, the City Council approved execution of a contract with 
All-American Construction for pavement rehabilitation of portions of Green Street ("Project") 
and directed staff to return to council with a new cost to include repairs to a cul-de-sac on 
Jefferson Street; and 
 
 WHEREAS, at the meeting of February 24, 2023, the Council directed staff to return to 
Council with a new cost to include additional work to manage ponding that occurs on Green 
Street during heavy; and 
 

WHEREAS, since the approval of the contract with All-American Construction in January, 
heavy rains have further damaged pavement in the cul-de-sac at the north end of Jefferson 
Street, causing the need for further repairs; and 

 
WHEREAS, staff has worked with All-American Construction for a budget to complete 

the additional work associated with replacing a portion of curb, gutter and sidewalk on Green 
Street to eliminate the ponding, as well as additional paving in the cul-de-sac on Jefferson 
Street, and All-American has estimated the additional work at $39,653; and 
 

WHEREAS, this additional work will bring the overall contract with All-American 
Construction to $93,653; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the original construction contingency of $5,400 and the estimated 
construction management and inspection costs of $5,600 remain the same as was originally 
approved by the Council.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The above recitals are true and correct and are hereby incorporated into this 
Resolution as findings of the City Council of the City of Willows. 

 
2. The City Manager, or her designee, is hereby authorized and directed to execute 

a change order with All-American Construction, Inc. for performance of the 
project in accordance with applicable laws and City Standards for an additional 
not to exceed amount of $39,653, bringing the total not to exceed amount of All-

123



Attachment 1 
 

American’s contract to $93,653, which will be funded with a combination of Gas 
Tax, SB1 and/or RSTP Funds. 

 
3. The overall budget (including construction, contingency and construction 

management/inspection costs) shall be increased to $104,653 to take into 
account the additional construction work. 

 
4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately. 

 
5. All portions of this resolution are severable.  Should any individual component of 

this Resolution be adjudged to be invalid and unenforceable by a body of 
competent jurisdiction, then the remaining resolution portions shall be and 
continue in full force and effect, except as to those resolution portions that have 
been adjudged invalid.  The City Council of the City of Willows hereby declares 
that it would have adopted this Resolution and each section, subsection, clause, 
sentence, phrase, and other portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that one or 
more section subsection, clause sentence, phrase or other portion may be held 
invalid or unconstitutional.  

 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the City Council on this 
23rd day of May 2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:     
NOES:     
ABSENT:    
ABSTAIN:    
 
APPROVED:       ATTESTED: 
 
 
 
 
_______________________     ___________________________ 
Richard Thomas, Mayor     Tara Rustenhoven, Deputy City Clerk 
 

 
 

124



Agenda Item #8c. 

 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
 

Date:   May 23, 2023 

To:   Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From:  Pat Piatt, Community Development & Services Director  
John Wanger, City Engineer 
 

Subject:  SB 1 Transportation Funds – Project List for FY23-24 
 

Recommendation: 

Approve the attached resolution and following actions: 

1. Review the recommended street projects to be funded with SB-1 monies.  
2. Listen to public comments and direct staff to make any changes, if necessary. 
3. Adopt the attached resolution. 
4. Direct staff to proceed with submitting the FY 2023-24 Road Maintenance and 

Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) project list to the State for approval. 
5. Authorize the necessary changes to the budget reflecting the anticipated revenues from 

SB-1 as mentioned herein and the expenditures for improvements to the streets 
included in the 2024 Pavement Rehabilitation Project as mentioned herein. 

Rationale for Recommendation:  

State regulations require that specific projects funded with SB-1 monies be annually approved 
by the City Council.  Once approved, the City must report the project list, as well as associated 
project information, to the State for final approval.  

Background: 

In 2017, Senate Bill 1 (SB-1) was approved by then Governor Jerry Brown. The Bill provides new 
revenues for road maintenance projects within the city limits.  According to State projections, 
for Fiscal Year 2023-24, the city is anticipated to receive approximately $158,877 in SB-1 
revenues.   

Discussion & Analysis: 

Based on the City’s estimated allocations of both SB-1 funds, the City is expected to receive the 
amount mentioned above from the State in FY 2023-24 for street improvement projects. As a 
result, the proposed Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for the upcoming fiscal year will 

125



Agenda Item #8c. 

include a Pavement Rehabilitation Project.  Based on information from the 2021 Pavement 
Management Program, staff is recommending treatment of the following streets:  

 Green Street from 250 feet east of N. Lassen to N. Butte Streets; and 
 Eureka Street from N. Butte to N. Tehama Streets.  

Specific details on the treatments and cost estimated for these street projects are as follows: 

 

As both Green and Eureka Streets are jointly owned by the City and County, it is anticipated 
that there will be a cost sharing of the overall expenses.  It is estimated that the city will be 
responsible for two thirds of the cost and the County for one third of the cost.  As shown in the 
table, the City’s anticipated cost is approximately $282,000.  Of that amount, it is anticipated 
that $158,877 will be funded through SB-1 funds and $123,063 will be funded through RSTP 
funds.  It should be noted that cost sharing discussions for the specific amounts shown have not 
been discussed with the County.  As the FY 2023/24 Pavement Rehabilitation Project moves 
forward, an agreement for cost sharing will be required between the City and County. 

Unlike other “Gas Tax” funding that cities receive, SB1 monies must be specifically identified 
and incorporated into the City’s adopted budget, and these projects must be submitted to the 
California Transportation Commission on an annual basis. 

Upon adoption of the attached resolution, the City Engineer will complete the necessary 
documentation and submit it to the State.  

Fiscal Impact:  

There is no fiscal impact in adopting the proposed SB1 list of proposed street projects for FY 
2023-24 and submitting the list to the State.  The adopted list is for fulfillment of the State’s 
requirement.  As the project moves forward, it is anticipated that agreements for the design 
and ultimate award of construction, as well as cost sharing agreements with the County will be 
brought forward to the Council for discussion and approval. 
 
Attachment:  

 Attachment 1: Resolution XX-2023  

Street Name
Area
(sf)

PCI
Total 

Estimated 
Cost

Type of Treatment

Eureka Street BUTTE ST TEHAMA ST 19,575 20 195,750$       3" Asphalt mill/fill
Green Street LASSEN PLUMAS 11,880 26 89,100$         2" Asphalt mill/fill
Green Street PLUMAS ST BUTTE ST 18,408 34 138,060$       2" Asphalt mill/fill

Total Estimated Cost 422,910$       
 Estimated City Share 281,940$       

Estimated County Share 140,970$       

Limits

126



Attachment 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF WILLOWS 
RESOLUTION NO. XX-2023 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF CITY OF WILLOWS  

ADOPTING A LIST OF STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-24  
AND RECOMMENDING THE USE OF SB 1 MONIES  

(THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017) TO FUND SAID PROJECTS:  
 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (Chapter 
5, Statutes of 2017) was passed by the Legislature and Signed into law by the Governor in April 
2017 to address the significant multi-modal transportation funding shortfalls statewide; and  

 
WHEREAS, SB 1 includes accountability and transparency provisions that will ensure the 

residents of the City of Willows are aware of the projects proposed for funding in the 
community and which projects have been completed each fiscal year; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City must adopt by resolution a list of projects proposed to receive fiscal 

year funding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), created by SB 1, 
which must include a description and the location of each proposed project, a proposed 
schedule for the project’s completion, and the estimated useful life of the improvement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City, will receive an estimated $158,877 in RMRA funding in Fiscal Year 

2023-24 from SB 1; and 
 
WHEREAS, this is the seventh year in which the City is receiving SB 1 funding and it will 

enable the City to continue essential road maintenance and rehabilitation projects, safety 
improvements, repairing and replacing aging bridges, and increasing access and mobility 
options for the traveling public that would not have otherwise been possible without SB 1; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City has undergone a public process to ensure public input into the 

community’s transportation priorities and the project list; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City used a Pavement Management System to develop the SB 1 project 

list to ensure revenues are being used on the highest-priority and most cost-effective projects 
that also meet the community’s priorities for transportation investment; and  

 
127



Attachment 1 

WHEREAS, the funding from SB 1 will help the City maintain and rehabilitate two streets 
and add active transportation infrastructure throughout the City this year and numerous 
projects into the future; and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2020 California Statewide Local Streets and Roads Needs Assessment 

found that the City’s streets and roads are “at risk” of further deterioration and this revenue 
will help to increase the overall quality of the City’s road system and, over the next decade, will 
bring streets and roads into at least a “fair condition”; and  

  
 WHEREAS, the SB 1 project list and overall investment in the City’s local streets and 
roads infrastructure will significantly improve basic maintenance and safety, invest in complete 
streets infrastructure, and use cutting-edge technology, materials and practices and will have 
significant positive benefits to the citizens of the City.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, ORDERED AND FOUND by the City Council of the 
City of Willows, State of California, as follows: 
 
1.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 
 
2.  The following list of newly proposed projects will be submitted to the State for 

consideration with proposed funding for Fiscal Year 2023-24 from the Road 
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (SB 1) revenues in the 2024 Pavement 
Rehabilitation Project: 

 

Street Name Limits Type of Treatment 
Estimated 

Construction 
Schedule 

Estimated 
Useful Life 

Eureka Street BUTTE ST TEHAMA ST 3" Asphalt mill/fill 4/24 - 6/24 20 years 
Green Street LASSEN PLUMAS 2" Asphalt mill/fill 4/24 - 6/24 20 years 
Green Street  PLUMAS ST BUTTE ST 2" Asphalt mill/fill 4/24 - 6/24 20 years 

 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Willows, State of California this 
23rd day of May 2023, by the following vote:  
 
AYES:  
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 

128



Attachment 1 

APPROVED:      ATTESTED: 
 
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Richard Thomas, Mayor    Tara Rustenhoven, Deputy City Clerk 
 

129



Agenda item #8d. 
 

 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
 

Date:   May 23, 2023 

To:   Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers 

From:   Pat Piatt, Community Development & Services Director 
  Marti Brown, City Manager 

Subject:  Purchase Case Backhoe 
 

Recommendation: 

Approve the attached resolution (Attachment 1) authorizing the purchase of a new backhoe 
from Sonsray Machinery in accordance with the attached quote (Attachment 2) for a total 
amount of $149,993. 

Rationale for Recommendation:  

On June 27, 2022, the Council approved the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating Budget, which 
included replacement vehicle expenditures, including a new backhoe, which supports the 
Public Works team in their work on streets, parks, and the wastewater system.   

Background:  
In accordance with the City’s purchasing policy, the City noticed a request for backhoe bids on 
April 5, 2023.  Interested parties were requested to submit bids by April 19, 2023, at 4:00 pm, 
and three dealerships submitted proposals before the deadline.  Sonsray Machinery provided 
the lowest price for each of the requested vehicles for a total cost of $149,993.  A comparison 
of the quotes submitted by the three dealerships is listed in the table below.  
 

Vendor Quote 
Sonsray - Case $149,993 
Pape - John Deere $157,400 
Peterson - Caterpiller $175,909 

 
Fiscal Impact:  

This purchase will be funded by a USDA grant secured by Fire Chief Monck, the General Fund, 
the Wastewater Fund and the Gas Tax Fund.   The impact to the General Fund will be $22,499, 
or 15% percent of the purchase price.  The impact to the Wastewater Fund ($22,499) and the 
Gas Tax fund ($22,499) will be $22,499, or 15% of the purchase price from each fund, and the 
USDA Grant will fund $82,496, or 55% of the purchase price.  The cost allocation to each Fund 
and the grant are listed below.  

 
130



Agenda item #8d. 
 

 
Funding Source Amount Percentage 

USDA Grant $82,496 55% 
General Fund $22499 15% 
Wastewater Fund $22,499 15% 
Gas Tax Fund $22,499 15% 

 
 
Attachments:  
 

• Attachment 1: Resolution XX-2023 
• Attachment 2: Dealer Quotes 

131



Attachment 1  

 
 

 
CITY OF WILLOWS  

RESOLUTION XX-2023 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL  
OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER, OR HER 

DESIGNEE, TO PURCHASE A NEW CASE BACKHOE UTILITY VEHICLES FROM SONSRAY 
MACHINERY FOR AN AMOUNT OF $149,993 

 
WHEREAS, on June 27, 2022 the City Council of the City of Willows adopted 

the budget for Fiscal Year 2022-23; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the purchase of a new backhoe was approved as part of the City’s Capital 
Outlay; and 
 
 WHEREAS, staff has determined that Sonray Machinery has provided a quote a backhoe 
that satisfies the City’s needs and was found to be the lowest bidder. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 1. The above recitals are true and correct and are hereby incorporated into this 
Resolution as findings of the City Council of the City of Willows. 
 
 2. This is not a project and is therefore categorically exempt from CEQA. 
 
 3. The City hereby finds the quote by Sonray Machinery to be the lowest 
responsive quote and waives any irregularities in such quote in accordance with applicable law.   

 
4. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to a new Case backhoe from 

Sonsray Machinery for the amount of $149,992.94. 
 
5. This Resolution shall become effective immediately. 

 
All portions of this resolution are severable.  Should any individual component of this 

Resolution be adjudged to be invalid and unenforceable by a body of competent jurisdiction, 
then the remaining resolution portions shall be and continue in full force and effect, except as 
to those resolution portions that have been adjudged invalid.  The City Council of the City of 
Willows hereby declares that it would have adopted this Resolution and each section, 
subsection, clause, sentence, phrase and other portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that one 
or more section subsection, clause sentence, phrase or other portion may be held invalid or 
unconstitutional.   
 
 

132



Attachment 1  

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the City Council on this 
23rd day of May 2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
APPROVED:       ATTESTED: 
 

 

__________________________    __________________________ 
Richard Thomas, Mayor     Tara Rustenhoven, Deputy City Clerk 

133



            Attachment 2

134



135



136



137



138



  

Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 
 
Mar 31, 2023 
 
CITY OF WILLOWS 
201 N LASSEN ST 
WILLOWS 
California 
95988 
 
 
Attention: Nathan  Monck 
 
RE: Quote 213722-01 

 
 

 

 
Dear Sir, 

 
 

 
We would like to thank you for your interest in our company and our products, and are pleased to quote the following for your 
consideration. 

 

 
One (1) New Caterpillar Model: 420 Backhoe Loaders 

 
STOCK NUMBER: PM01929               SERIAL NUMBER: 0H8T03629 
 

 
MACHINE SPECIFICATIONS 
420 07A BACKHOE LOADER CFG2 542-7992 

LANE 2 ORDER 0P-9002 

BEACON, MAGNETIC MOUNT, STROBE 433-0154 

ENGINE, 82KW, C3.6 DITA, T4F 542-7780 

BEACON, MAGNETIC MOUNT 211-4292 

COUPLER, PG, HYDR.D.LOCK, BHL 485-5303 

RUST PREVENTATIVE APPLICATOR 462-1033 

SEAT BELT, 3'' SUSPENSION 206-1748 

SHIPPING/STORAGE PROTECTION 461-6839 

STABILIZER PADS, FLIP-OVER 9R-6007 

FAN 387-6682 

TRIM PACKAGE 3 630-5313 

PINS, SPARE 318-9902 

COUPLING,QD,THREADED WITH CAPS 456-3390 

LOADER BUCKET PINS 545-8548 

BUCKET-MP, 1.4 YD3, PO 337-7442 

LINES,HYD CPLR 14FT EXT PILOT 555-2396 

PACK, DOMESTIC TRUCK 0P-0210 

INSTRUCTIONS, ANSI 559-0872 

MIRRORS, EXTERNAL, BOTH SIDES 382-2499 

TIRES, 340 80R18/500 70R24, MX 533-0479 

139



  

Page 2 of 3 

 

SERIALIZED TECHNICAL MEDIA KIT 421-8926 

CUTTING EDGE, TWO PIECE,WIDE 9R-5320 

420 LANE 2 ZCON 626-9389 

THUMB, TINE, A 3 221-4283 

AUGER, A68, BHL, 45-50MM 227-4359 

12" HD Bucket  

24" HD Bucket  

Thumb, HYDRAULIC  

BIT, AUGER 12"  

 
 

 

 

 

 

SELL PRICE $164,018.07 

EXT WARRANTY Included 

NET BALANCE DUE $164,018.07 

SALES TAX (7.25%) $11,891.31 

AFTER TAX BALANCE $175,909.38 

 

 

 

 

 
WARRANTY 

Standard Warranty: 12 Month, Unlimited Hours  Standard Warranty 

Extended Warranty: 420-48 MO/4000 HR POWERTRAIN + HYDRAULICS + TECH (Tier 4) 

  

 
F.O.B/TERMS: Delivered 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Accepted by___________________________________ on ____________________  
 

 

 
                                                                              ______________________________ 
                                                                                           Signature 

140



  

Page 3 of 3 

 

 
This Quote is valid for 30 days, after which time we reserve the right to re-quote. If there are any questions, please do not hesitate to 
contact me. 
 

 
Sincerely,     
 
 
 
 
 
Travis Boyan 
Machine Sales Representative   
Peterson CAT 
(530) 990-0961 
TLBoyan@petersoncat.com 
 

 

 

 

141



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

COMMENTS AND 
REPORTS 

142


	ADP9A77.tmp
	Glenn County �CARE Court
	CARE Court Overview
	Criteria and Eligibility
	What are Schizophrenia Spectrum and Other Psychotic Disorders?
	How is someone referred to CARE Court?
	Caution: �petitions must be valid
	How To Initiate the �Care Court Process
	Voluntary Services Agreement Process
	Court-Ordered Services Process
	The CARE Agreement/CARE Plan
	Development of the Care Plan
	CARE Plan: Medication Orders
	Respondent’s Rights
	Voluntary Supporter 
	Frequently Asked Questions
	Contacts

	ADP7961.tmp
	Recommendation:




